
 
NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING 

THE BRENHAM CITY COUNCIL 
THURSDAY JULY 17, 2014 AT 1:00 P.M. 

SECOND FLOOR CITY HALL 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS  

200 W. VULCAN 
BRENHAM, TEXAS 

 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order 
 
2. Invocation and Pledges to the US and Texas Flags – Councilmember Barnes-Tilley 
 
3. Citizens Comments 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
4. Statutory Consent Agenda 

The Statutory Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that Council may act on with 
one single vote.  A councilmember may pull any item from the Consent Agenda in order that the Council 
discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda. 

 
4-a. Minutes from the June 19, 2014 and July 3, 2014 Regular City Council 

Meetings and June 26, 2014 Special City Council Meeting        Page 1-30 
 
 
REGULAR AGENDA  
 

5. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon Resolution No. R-14-016 Adopting New 
Permit and Inspection Fees for the City of Brenham’s Development Services, 
Code Enforcement, and Fire Marshal’s Office         Page 31-35 

 
6. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon an Amendment No. 1 to the Airport Project 

Participation Agreement No. 13HGBRENM with TxDOT and Authorize the 
Mayor to Execute Any Necessary Documentation        Page 36-40 

 
 

  



7. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon Resolution No. R-14-017 Authorizing the Acceptance 
of TxDOT’s Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) Grant for the Period of 
October 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015 for the Police Department and 
Authorize the Mayor to Execute Any Necessary Documentation       Page 41-71 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
8. Section 551.071 – Consultation with Attorney – Consultation with City Attorney 

Regarding a Substandard Building Located at 209 South Market Street, Brenham, 
Texas, said Property also Described as Noel’s Addition, Lot 1C in a Deed Recorded 
in Volume 1167, Page 717 of the Official Records of Washington County       Page 72 

   
 
RE-OPEN REGULAR AGENDA  
 
9. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon Authorizing the City Attorney to Pursue All 

Available Legal Remedies, Proceedings and Relief on Behalf of the City of Brenham, 
Texas Against All Appropriate Persons and/or Entities Regarding a Substandard 
Building Located at 209 South Market Street, Brenham, Texas, said Property also 
Described as Noel’s Addition, Lot 1C in a Deed Recorded in Volume 1167, Page 717 
of the Official Records of Washington County               Page 73 

 
Administrative/Elected Officials Reports:  Reports from City Officials or City staff regarding items of community interest, 
including expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary 
recognitions of public officials, public employees or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by 
the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is 
scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and 
safety of people in the City that have arisen after the posting of the agenda. 

 
 
10. Administrative/Elected Officials Report 
 
Adjourn 
 
Executive Sessions: The City Council for the City of Brenham reserves the right to convene into executive session at any time 
during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed, as authorized by Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, 
including but not limited to §551.071 – Consultation with Attorney, §551.072 – Real Property, §551.073 – Prospective Gifts, 
§551.074 - Personnel Matters, §551.076 – Security Devices, §551.086 -  Utility Competitive Matters, and §551.087 – Economic 
Development Negotiations. 
 
  



CERTIFICATION 
 

I certify that a copy of the July 17, 2014 agenda of items to be considered by the City of Brenham City 
Council was posted to the City Hall bulletin board at 200 W. Vulcan, Brenham, Texas on July 14, 2014 at 
11:50 AM. 
 
 
 

Amanda Klehm 
Deputy City Secretary 
 
 
Disability Access Statement:  This meeting is wheelchair accessible.  The accessible entrance is located at the 
Vulcan Street entrance to the City Administration Building.  Accessible parking spaces are located adjoining the 
entrance.  Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request (interpreters for the deaf must be requested twenty-
four (24) hours before the meeting) by calling (979) 337-7567 for assistance. 
 
I certify that the attached notice and agenda of items to be considered by the City Council was removed by me from 
the City Hall bulletin board on the ________ day of ___________________, 2014 at __________ AM PM. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Signature Title 



Brenham City Council Minutes 
 

A regular meeting of the Brenham City Council was held on June 19, 2014 beginning at 
1:00 p.m. in the Brenham City Hall, City Council Chambers, at 200 W. Vulcan Street, Brenham, 
Texas. 
 
Members present: 

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr. 
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix 
Councilmember Andrew Ebel 
Councilmember Danny Goss 
Councilmember Keith Herring 
Councilmember Weldon Williams, Jr. 

 
Members absent: 

 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley 
 

Others present: 
 
City Manager Terry K. Roberts, City Secretary Jeana Bellinger, Chief Financial Officer 
Carolyn Miller, Stacy Hardy, Tammy Jaster, Susan Nienstedt, Sara Parker, Fire Chief 
Ricky Boeker, Deputy Fire Chief Alan Finke, Police Chief Rex Phelps, Public Works 
Director Dane Rau, Public Utilities Director Lowell Ogle, and Kevin Boggus 

 
Citizens present: 

 
Lu Hollander, John Muegge, Clint Kolby, Page Michel, Curtis Echman, Katherine 
Podeszwa, AJ Jozwiak, John Beckendorf, Ron Alfred, Kurt Alfred, Randy C. Fletcher, 
Pam Hohlt, Jeff Hohlt, Alan Hutson, and Donna Lewis 
 

Media Present: 
 
Arthur Hahn, Brenham Banner Press; Frank Wagner, KWHI 

 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order 
 
2. Invocation and Pledges to the US and Texas Flags – Councilmember Williams 
 
3. Citizens Comments 
 
 Councilmember Williams introduced Donna Williams Lewis from Atlanta. 
 

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

1



4. Special Recognition 
 Red Cross Life Saving Award Presented to Blue Bell Aquatic Center 

Employee 
 

Aquatic Supervisor Tammy Jaster presented the Red Cross Life Saving Award to 
Hannah Hohlt for saving her father’s life with her CPR skills learned through 
Red Cross training. Red Cross Representatives Mark Felton and Curtis Echman 
also attended to present the award. EMS Representative Katie Podeszwa was 
present. 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
5. Statutory Consent Agenda 
 

5a. Ordinance No. O-14-019 on Its Second Reading Annexing the Hereinafter 
Described Territory into the City of Brenham and Adopting a Service Plan: 

Section 2014-1: Approximately 281.667 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Phillip Coe Survey, Abstract No. 
A0031, and the Arrabella Harrington Survey, Abstract No. 
A0055 generally consisting of tracts with frontage along 
Burleson Street; tracts with frontage along State Highway 36th 
North and Dixie Road; land located east of and adjacent to 
Westwood Lane; and land with frontage along Highway 290 
West that is not currently within the City limits being located 
approximately 2500 feet from the ‘cloverleaf’ intersection of 
Highway 290 West and State Highway 36 North. 

Section 2014-2: Approximately 30.512 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the John Carrington Survey, Abstract 
No. A0120, generally consisting of tracts with frontage along 
the western right-of-way line of State Highway 36 beginning at 
the current City limits and proceeding in a southerly direction 
to approximately Anderson Lane (located on the eastern side 
of State Highway 36 South). 

Section 2014-3: Approximately 45.366 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Isaac Lee Survey, Abstract No. 
A0077, generally consisting of tracts that abut the current City 
limits between South Blue Bell Road and Tiaden Lane and 
tracts that abut US Highway 290 East from Blue Bell Road to 
approximately 500 feet east of Tiaden Lane. 

Section 2014-4: Approximately 46.457 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Phillip Coe Survey, Abstract No. 

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

2



A0031, consisting of tracts located between FM 389 and 
Industrial Boulevard 

5b. Ordinance No. O-14-020 on Its Second Reading Amending Appendix A – 
“Zoning” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Brenham to Establish 
Zoning District Classifications to Properties Being Annexed into the City of 
Brenham and More Specifically Described Below:  

Section 2014-1: Approximately 281.667 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Phillip Coe Survey, Abstract No. 
A0031, and the Arrabella Harrington Survey, Abstract No. 
A0055 generally consisting of tracts with frontage along 
Burleson Street; tracts with frontage along State Highway 36th 
North and Dixie Road; land located east of and adjacent to 
Westwood Lane; and land with frontage along Highway 290 
West that is not currently within the City limits being located 
approximately 2500 feet from the ‘cloverleaf’ intersection of 
Highway 290 West and State Highway 36 North. 

Section 2014-2: Approximately 30.512 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the John Carrington Survey, Abstract No. 
A0120, generally consisting of tracts with frontage along the 
western right-of-way line of State Highway 36 beginning at the 
current City limits and proceeding in a southerly direction to 
approximately Anderson Lane (located on the eastern side of 
State Highway 36 South). 

Section 2014-3: Approximately 45.366 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Isaac Lee Survey, Abstract No. 
A0077, generally consisting of tracts that abut the current City 
limits between South Blue Bell Road and Tiaden Lane and 
tracts that abut US Highway 290 East from Blue Bell Road to 
approximately 500 feet east of Tiaden Lane. 

Section 2014-4: Approximately 46.457 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Phillip Coe Survey, Abstract No. 
A0031, consisting of tracts located between FM 389 and 
Industrial Boulevard 

5-c. Ordinance No. O-14-021 on Its Second Reading for the Approval of a 
Request for a Specific Use Permit to Allow a Bed and Breakfast within an R-
2 Mixed Residential Zoning District on Property Located at 1002 S. Day 
Street, and Specifically Being a 0.497 Acre Tract Described as Block 3, Lot S 
½ Lot 2 of the W.G. Wilkins Addition in the City of Brenham, Washington 
County, Texas  

 

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

3



5-d. Ordinance No. O-14-022 on Its Second Reading for the Approval of an 
Amendment to the Official Zoning Map of the City of Brenham, to Change 
the Zoning from an Industrial (I) District to a Residential Single Family (R-
1) District on the Following Five (5) Tracts of Land Located on Burleson 
Street:  

 
a. 1320 Burleson Street (Tract 142, Arrabella Harrington) 
b. Burleson Street [Leggett & Platt, Inc.] (Tract 232, Arrabella 

Harrington) 
c. 1406 Burleson Street (Tract 235, Arrabella Harrington) 
d. 1408 Burleson Street (Tract 230, Arrabella Harrington) 
e. 1414 Burleson Street (Tract 369, Arrabella Harrington) 

All consent agenda items were moved to the regular agenda. 
 
 
REGULAR AGENDA  
 

5a. Ordinance No. O-14-019 on Its Second Reading Annexing the Hereinafter 
Described Territory into the City of Brenham and Adopting a Service Plan: 

Section 2014-1: Approximately 281.667 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Phillip Coe Survey, Abstract No. 
A0031, and the Arrabella Harrington Survey, Abstract No. 
A0055 generally consisting of tracts with frontage along 
Burleson Street; tracts with frontage along State Highway 36th 
North and Dixie Road; land located east of and adjacent to 
Westwood Lane; and land with frontage along Highway 290 
West that is not currently within the City limits being located 
approximately 2500 feet from the ‘cloverleaf’ intersection of 
Highway 290 West and State Highway 36 North. 

Section 2014-2: Approximately 30.512 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the John Carrington Survey, Abstract 
No. A0120, generally consisting of tracts with frontage along 
the western right-of-way line of State Highway 36 beginning at 
the current City limits and proceeding in a southerly direction 
to approximately Anderson Lane (located on the eastern side 
of State Highway 36 South). 

Section 2014-3: Approximately 45.366 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Isaac Lee Survey, Abstract No. 
A0077, generally consisting of tracts that abut the current City 
limits between South Blue Bell Road and Tiaden Lane and 
tracts that abut US Highway 290 East from Blue Bell Road to 
approximately 500 feet east of Tiaden Lane. 

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

4



Section 2014-4: Approximately 46.457 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Phillip Coe Survey, Abstract No. 
A0031, consisting of tracts located between FM 389 and 
Industrial Boulevard 

A motion was made by Councilmember Herring and seconded by Councilmember Goss 
to approve Consent Agenda Item 5a.   

  
Citizen John Muegge stated the new agreement regarding Tract 3 has been submitted and 

he does not have any objection to the annexation. 
 
 Citizen Dan Mason stated that in regards to Section 2014-1, he is not in agreement with 
the land being annexed and remain in opposition because they feel that the annexation will 
impede them to continue to use their property for family agriculture. Mason requested that 
Council remove 2600 Highway 290 West in Section 2104-1. 

 
Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Absent  
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Yes 

  
5b. Ordinance No. O-14-020 on Its Second Reading Amending Appendix A – 

“Zoning” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Brenham to Establish 
Zoning District Classifications to Properties Being Annexed into the City of 
Brenham and More Specifically Described Below:  

Section 2014-1: Approximately 281.667 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Phillip Coe Survey, Abstract No. 
A0031, and the Arrabella Harrington Survey, Abstract No. 
A0055 generally consisting of tracts with frontage along 
Burleson Street; tracts with frontage along State Highway 36th 
North and Dixie Road; land located east of and adjacent to 
Westwood Lane; and land with frontage along Highway 290 
West that is not currently within the City limits being located 
approximately 2500 feet from the ‘cloverleaf’ intersection of 
Highway 290 West and State Highway 36 North. 

  

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

5



Section 2014-2: Approximately 30.512 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the John Carrington Survey, Abstract No. 
A0120, generally consisting of tracts with frontage along the 
western right-of-way line of State Highway 36 beginning at the 
current City limits and proceeding in a southerly direction to 
approximately Anderson Lane (located on the eastern side of 
State Highway 36 South). 

Section 2014-3: Approximately 45.366 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Isaac Lee Survey, Abstract No. 
A0077, generally consisting of tracts that abut the current City 
limits between South Blue Bell Road and Tiaden Lane and 
tracts that abut US Highway 290 East from Blue Bell Road to 
approximately 500 feet east of Tiaden Lane. 

Section 2014-4: Approximately 46.457 acres of land situated in Washington 
County, Texas, out of the Phillip Coe Survey, Abstract No. 
A0031, consisting of tracts located between FM 389 and 
Industrial Boulevard 

A motion was made by Councilmember Goss and seconded by Councilmember Williams 
to approve Ordinance No. O-14-020 on its second reading amending Appendix A – “Zoning” of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Brenham to establish zoning district classifications to 
properties being annexed into the City of Brenham and more specifically described below.   

 
Councilmember Goss questioned if Section 2014-3 zoning has been changed. 

Development Services Director Julie Fulgham stated that it has not changed, but rather remained 
as it is now. Citizen John Muegge stated that he had a previous objection, but when he met with 
Staff, he withdrew his previous objections. 

  
Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Absent  
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Yes 

 
5-c. Ordinance No. O-14-021 on Its Second Reading for the Approval of a 

Request for a Specific Use Permit to Allow a Bed and Breakfast within an R-
2 Mixed Residential Zoning District on Property Located at 1002 S. Day 
Street, and Specifically Being a 0.497 Acre Tract Described as Block 3, Lot S 
½ Lot 2 of the W.G. Wilkins Addition in the City of Brenham, Washington 
County, Texas  

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

6



 
A motion was made by Councilmember Herring and seconded by Councilmember Ebel 

to approve Consent Agenda Item 5c.   
  
Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Absent  
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Yes 

 
5-d. Ordinance No. O-14-022 on Its Second Reading for the Approval of an 

Amendment to the Official Zoning Map of the City of Brenham, to Change 
the Zoning from an Industrial (I) District to a Residential Single Family (R-
1) District on the Following Five (5) Tracts of Land Located on Burleson 
Street:  

 
a. 1320 Burleson Street (Tract 142, Arrabella Harrington) 
b. Burleson Street [Leggett & Platt, Inc.] (Tract 232, Arrabella 

Harrington) 
c. 1406 Burleson Street (Tract 235, Arrabella Harrington) 
d. 1408 Burleson Street (Tract 230, Arrabella Harrington) 
e. 1414 Burleson Street (Tract 369, Arrabella Harrington) 

A motion was made by Councilmember Goss and seconded by Councilmember Ebel to 
approve Consent Agenda Item 5d.   

  
Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Absent  
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Yes 

 
  

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

7



WORK SESSION 
 
6. Presentation of the Second Quarter Report by the Washington County Convention 

and Visitors Bureau 
 

Lu Hollander, with the Washington County Convention and Visitors Bureau, presented 
this report. Hollander stated packets were laid around the Dias with more information. She 
focused on the highlights featured in the Second Quarter Report – January – March 2014, 
pointing out the visitor statistics, major tourism events, advertising placements, and editorial 
coverage. 
 

There were no questions. 
 
7. Presentation and Update Regarding the Charter Review 
 

City Secretary Jeana Bellinger presented this item. Bellinger stated the City Attorney and 
herself are in the process of going through each section of the Charter.  Bellinger presented 
recommended changes to the remaining sections (7-11C) of Article II. 
 
8. Discussion and Presentation Regarding Future Transportation Mobility Projects 
 

Public Works Director Dane Rau presented this item. Rau stated that in the Pre-Budget 
Workshop, Staff discussed with Council additional transportation projects that could enhance 
travel in the Brenham area. Rau explained that Staff currently has around $900,000 left for new 
transportation and mobility projects out of the $1.85 million bond proceeds from 2012. Rau 
advised that Staff would like to get Council’s authorization to conduct several of these projects 
in-house.   

 
The projects that Staff would like to get started on are: 

 
1. Cantey St. Extension (Cul-D-Sac to 290 Feeder) 
2. Mobility Projects 

a.  Day/Stone St. 
b. Market/Stone/St. 
c. Park/MLK/Academy St. 

3. Chappell Hill St. Widening (Ralston Creek –Stone St.) 
 

Rau explained that the Cantey Street Extension is ready for construction to begin. Rau stated 
that the mobility projects will need coordination with TxDOT and still require some planning.  
Rau advised that the Chappell Hill Street widening is currently in the planning stages. Rau stated 
these projects will be funded with the 2012 bond proceeds.     

 
Councilmember Williams stated that Item C (MLK and Academy) is higher on his list of 

priority street projects because it’s a dead area. Councilmember Williams stated that area gets 
easily backed up.  

 

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

8



Councilmember Goss questioned how it is that the City has the revenue to complete the 
projects yet Staff has to obtain right-of-ways from TxDOT. Rau explained that depending on 
how wide Staff extends Stone Street as well as the intersections of the mobility projects. Rau 
stated that depending on what TxDOT comes to the table with on the signal lights, it could eat up 
a lot of money. Rau advised that Staff will not know the actual cost until they meet with TxDOT 
regarding the mobility projects. Rau stated the best route would be to work on Cantey Street and 
Chappell Hill Street, then work with TxDOT on the mobility projects with the money that is 
leftover. Councilmember Goss questioned about right-of-ways on Chappell Hill Street. City 
Engineer Grant Lischka stated it depends on if the roadway is 31 feet wide or 39 feet wide. 
Lischka explained that there are right-of-way issues now, but the City currently has curb and 
gutter. Lischka stated one solution would be to leave the current curb and gutter and extend the 
road to the West. Lischka explained that Staff is having some surveying done to hopefully be 
able to use the existing right-of-way. Lischka stated the City will have to purchase land on the 
North side just to the East of Ralston Creek Subdivision, which is an undeveloped piece of land. 
Lischka explained Staff is trying to stay away from acquiring more right-of-ways. 

 
Councilmember Goss questioned that the only project that Staff can begin on without any 

issues is Cantey Street. Rau stated yes, Cantey Street is the only one that we currently own the 
right-of-way and the City can widen the streets. Mayor Tate stated that he thinks Staff should 
start with Cantey Street and then get facts and figures on the other projects. Rau stated that Staff 
will meet with TxDOT to look at all of the projects and get better figures on what it will cost to 
complete each project. 

 
Mayor Tate questioned Chief Rex Phelps regarding accidents at the intersection of Stone 

Street. Phelps explained that there are no more accidents at that intersection than there are at 
intersections that are similar. Fire Chief Ricky Boeker stated that the Fire Department has not 
had to work any accidents at that intersection, but they have had to do roadway cleanup when 
things fall off of trucks and obstruct the roadway such as oil, paint and things like that. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Nix explained that she cautions that they should plan ahead on their street 

projects. Mayor Pro Tem Nix stated that it bothers her to see the City tear up something that they 
just fixed a few years ago. 

 
Mayor Tate stated that Staff should come up with some current figures before beginning any 

projects at this point.  
 

 
REGULAR AGENDA  
 
9.  Discuss and Possibly Act Upon an Agreement Between the City of Brenham and 

Brenham National Bank for the Use of Certain Property in the Event of a Natural 
Disaster and Authorize the Mayor to Execute Any Necessary Documentation  

 
  

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

9



City Manager Terry Roberts presented this item. Roberts stated that the City of Brenham 
acquired property from Brenham National Bank 10 years ago for additional parking for it new 
City Hall building.  Roberts explained that the Bank retained the area where its ATM machine is 
located on Main Street.  Roberts advised that in a related action to the real estate transaction, the 
City of Brenham and Brenham National Bank entered into a 10 year lease agreement for use of 
the parking lot area for a temporary bank location in the event of major disaster that rendered 
their bank building inoperable for a period of time.  Roberts stated the Bank sought this location 
as their alternative disaster recovery site since already served that purpose before the sale of the 
site to the City. 
 

Roberts explained that Brenham National has asked to renew the parking lot lease for an 
additional 10 years.  Roberts advised that while the original lease may have been tied to the 
purchase of the parking lot by the City, the City Attorney recommends that the renewal have a 
more traditional section dealing with the “consideration” section of the lease.   
 

Roberts stated the lease document provides for a $1,000 per month lease if the need ever 
arose to deal with a disaster event at their location on S. Day.  Roberts explained that was a 
number agreeable to Brenham National and the City Administration.    
 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Williams and seconded by Councilmember Ebel 
to approve an agreement between the City of Brenham and Brenham National Bank for the use 
of certain property in the event of a natural disaster and authorize the Mayor to execute any 
necessary documentation.   
 

Councilmember Goss questioned if disaster should occur, would the City need to use the 
area around City Hall. Fire Chief Ricky Boeker stated he does not foresee any need that the City 
would need that area in the event of a disaster. Assistant City Manager Kyle Dannhaus stated 
that the City would most likely use the EOC at the Fire Station. Dannhaus stated that he doesn’t 
foresee any need. Dannhaus stated that Staff would try to use City Hall if the building was 
usable, but Staff would be minimal. Dannhaus explained that Staff could use either EOC at the 
Fire Station or at the Police Department.  

  
Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Absent  
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Yes 

 
  

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

10



10. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon Approval of a Request From Blue Bell Creameries to 
Install a 10,000 Gallon Above Ground Diesel Fuel Storage Tank  

 
Deputy Fire Chief and Fire Marshal Alan Finke presented this item. Finke stated that AJ 

Jozwiak with Blue Bell was present to answer any questions Council may have about the fuel 
storage tank. Finke stated Blue Bell Creameries is requesting a Special Permit for a 10,000 
gallon above-ground fuel storage tank to be used for red-dyed off-road use diesel fuel. Finke 
explained the tank to be located at 1101 South Blue Bell Road, Brenham, Texas, at the Blue Bell 
Creameries Main Plant Industrial Subdivision as per attached Site Plan (zoned Industrial).  Finke 
advised that the tank is to be designed, constructed, installed & operated in compliance with 
standards of Underwriters Labs, National Fire Protection Association 30 (“Flammable & 
Combustible Liquids Code”), the International Fire Code (2012 Ed.), and regulations of the 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. Finke explained that the tank will be used only 
for storage of “combustible liquids” having a flash point no lower than 100°F. Finke stated the 
tank location is well away from all property lines (300 feet or more). Finke explained that the 
permit will be subject to annual renewal after inspection by the Fire Marshal’s Office. Finke 
advised that the Special Permit may be revoked by the Fire Marshal at any time for failure to 
comply with applicable regulations or if any unsafe condition is found. 
 

A motion was made by Councilmember Ebel and seconded by Councilmember Williams 
to approve a request from Blue Bell Creameries to install a 10,000 gallon above ground diesel 
fuel storage tank. 

  
Mayor Pro Tem Nix called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Abstain  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Absent  
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Yes 

 
11. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon an Addendum to the Contract Between the City of 

Brenham and Ambassador Higher Cleaning Standards for Janitorial Services and 
Authorize the Mayor to Execute Any Necessary Documentation 

 
Purchasing Services Supervisor Sara Parker presented this item. Parker stated that on 

November 26, 2013, Council approved award of the Annual Contract for Janitorial Services for 
Various City Facilities to Ambassador Higher Cleaning Standards or Houston, TX in the amount 
of $66,036. 
 
  

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

11



Parker explained that the relocation of Library services to City Hall has required a 
revision of the contract: therefore, the vendor was requested to quote equivalent services for the 
Library occupied areas in addition to the services already provided for City Hall.  Parker advised 
that the quote provides those services at $514 per month, half of the original cost for the Library 
building.  
 

Parker stated the savings versus budget allow for the addition of services at other City 
facilities. Parker stated the rental booking of the All Sports Building has increased and the 
Central Warehouse is utilized by all City Departments. Parker advised that Ambassador provided 
quotes for twice-weekly service for the ASB at $187 per month and once weekly service for the 
office and restroom areas of the Central Warehouse at $125 per month. 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Nix and seconded by Councilmember Williams to 
approve an Addendum to the Contract as stated in the agenda item between the City of Brenham 
and Ambassador Higher Cleaning Standards for janitorial services and authorize the Mayor to 
execute any necessary documentation. 

  
Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Absent  
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Yes 
 

12.  Discuss and Possibly Act Upon an Interlocal Agreement Between the City of 
Brenham and the State of Texas’ Region VIII Education Service Center for 
Cooperative Purchasing Services (TIPS/TAPS) and Authorize the Mayor to Execute 
Any Necessary Documentation 

 
Purchasing Services Supervisor Sara Parker presented this item. Parker stated Chapter 

271 of the Texas Local Government Code allows municipalities to enter into interlocal 
agreements with cooperative purchasing associations such as The Interlocal Purchasing System 
(TIPS).  Parker advised the cooperative awards contracts for various goods and services through 
a competitive bidding process which meets the standards of State of Texas purchasing statutes. 
Parker stated these contracts are then available to participating entities. 
 

Parker explained that the advantages of a cooperative contract are lower administrative 
costs, improved response from vendors, and the potential for lower costs through increased 
volume. Parker advised that the City has the option on any individual purchase or project to 
utilize a cooperative contract or to pursue other qualifying means, including the full bid process. 
Parker stated the purchasing cooperative provides another tool to achieve best value for the City.  
 

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

12



A motion was made by Councilmember Herring and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Nix to 
approve an Interlocal Agreement with changes as received by the City Attorney between the City 
of Brenham and the State of Texas’ Region VIII Education Service Center for Cooperative 
Purchasing Services (TIPS/TAPS) and authorize the Mayor to execute any necessary 
documentation. 

  
Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Absent  
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Yes 

 
13.  Discuss and Possibly Act Upon a One (1) Year Extension in Accordance with Bid 

No. 12-009 for Gasoline and Diesel Fuel for the City’s Vehicle and Equipment Fleet 
and Authorize the Mayor to Execute Any Necessary Documentation  

 
Public Works Director Dane Rau presented this item. Rau stated the City of Brenham and 

Alexander Oil have had a great working relationship for many years.  Rau explained that in 
2012, the City of Brenham Council awarded the bulk fueling contract to Alexander Oil in Bid 
#12-009.  Rau advised that the initial term of this contract expired on July 1, 2013.  Rau stated 
that on August 1, 2013 City Council awarded a one year extension to Alexander Oil. Rau 
explained that the time has come once again to either bid out or award the final extension to 
Alexander Oil. Rau stated Alexander Oil has acknowledged their intent (attached letter) to 
exercise the final contract extension for 2014 and continue supplying bulk fuel to the City of 
Brenham.  Rau advised that this will be the final extension and will follow all terms and 
conditions as the contract that was approved in June of 2012. Rau explained the prices in Bid 
#12-009 will remain the same as well.   
 

Rau stated in 2012, bids were awarded by the lowest profit margin per gallon above the 
average OPIS (Oil Price Information Service).  Rau explained that two bids were sent out with 
only one bid received in 2012.  Rau advised that Alexander Oil was awarded the bid based on the 
lowest profit margin parameters. 
 

Rau explained that Alexander Oil provides the City of Brenham a location to fuel up fleet 
vehicles along with supplying numerous departments’ bulk fuel at their desired location for items 
such as generators, bulk storage tanks and the tub grinder. Rau stated they also provide a 
secondary location for times when the main location is being worked on or temporarily out of 
service, which is located at the Brenham Food Stop on Prairie Lea St. Rau explained that if 
council agrees with this final extension the final term will run from July 1, 2014-June 21, 2015.  
Rau advised that next year a formal bid will be required due to exercising all the term options.         
 

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

13



A motion was made by Councilmember Herring and seconded by Councilmember Ebel 
to approve a one (1) year extension with Alexander Oil in accordance with Bid No. 12-009 for 
gasoline and diesel fuel for the City’s vehicle and equipment fleet and authorize the Mayor to 
execute any necessary documentation 

  
Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Absent  
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Yes 

 
14. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon a Request for a Noise Variance From Daisy’s 

Mexican Food Restaurant for June 20, 2014 From 9:00 P.M. to 1:00 A.M. 
 

City Secretary Jeana Bellinger presented this item. Bellinger stated Daisy’s Mexican 
Food Restaurant submitted a request for a Noise Variance to hold an event for their customers on 
June 20, 2014 from 9:30 p.m. until 1:00 a.m. when clean-up is through. Bellinger explained that 
there will a DJ and a sound amplification system; therefore, a Noise Variance is required. 
Bellinger explained that Deputy City Secretary Amanda Klehm sent the request to Police Chief 
Rex Phelps and Fire Chief Ricky Boeker. Bellinger advised that the Police Department did have 
some concerns because of complaints in that area in the past. Bellinger stated Police Chief 
Phelps recommended the time being changed to 7:00pm to 11:00pm.  

 
Phelps stated that on the weekends, the Police Department feels that 11:00pm is okay, but 

anything after 11:00pm is when trouble begins to occur. Councilmember Williams questioned if 
that is by the barber shop. Phelps explained yes, the Police Department used to get a lot of 
complaint calls for that area.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Nix questioned why the form states one day yet the request states two 

days. Bellinger explained that she was not present when the request was made, but stated that 
Klehm spoke with her and it was meant for the Friday, June 20th date. 
 

A motion was made by Councilmember Herring to approve a request for a noise variance 
from Daisy’s Mexican Food Restaurant for June 20, 2014 from 7:00 P.M. to 11:00 P.M.  

 
Mayor Tate stated that he would prefer the time be until 10:00pm. Councilmember Goss 

agreed with Mayor Tate. Councilmember Williams stated that he would say the event could be 
held until 10:30pm. Mayor Tate thought 10:30pm would be okay. Councilmember Herring 
questioned when she came in to fill out her request and has she done any preparations for this 
event since it was to be held the following day. Bellinger stated that she did not come in to fill 
out the request until Monday. 

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

14



Councilmember Goss has concerns because it is located in a residential area. 
Councilmember Ebel questioned if the neighbors have been consulted.  

 
Councilmember Herring retracted his motion. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Nix questioned if there was anyone who was present to represent this 

event. Bellinger stated there was not a representative present.  
 
Councilmember Goss stated he doesn’t remember them being open past 9:30pm. Mayor 

Tate stated then the event should be 7:00pm to 9:00pm. Phelps stated that he feels comfortable 
with the event going from 7:00pm to 10:30pm, if it’s a one night deal. Phelps explained that he 
does not remember them ever having any complaints come from that restaurant. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Nix questioned if they have an alcohol license at this location. Bellinger 

stated that they do not. Mayor Pro Tem Nix stated that the lack of an alcohol license could help 
with the noise variance. 

 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Williams to approve a request for a noise 

variance from Daisy’s Mexican Food Restaurant for June 20, 2014 from 7:00 P.M. to 10:30 P.M. 
The motion died for a lack of a second. 

 
Councilmember Herring stated that, in the future, they need to give Council more notice 

and notify their neighbors of the event. 
 

A motion was made by Councilmember Herring and seconded by Councilmember Ebel 
to deny a request for a noise variance from Daisy’s Mexican Food Restaurant for June 20, 2014 
from 7:00 P.M. to 1:00 A.M. 
 

Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  
 

Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Absent  
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Yes 

 
Council adjourned into Executive Session at 2:20pm. 
 
 
  

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

15



EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
15. Section 551.072 - Texas Government Code – Deliberation Regarding Real Property 

– Discussion Regarding Potential Sale of Approximately 204.925 Acres In the Silas 
Clark Survey (A028), Tract 18, As Recorded in Volume 496, Page 800 of the Official 
Records of Washington County and Located at 5525 Caney Creek Road in Chappell 
Hill, Texas and More Commonly Identified as the Old Landfill Property 

 
 
Executive Session adjourned at 3:10pm. 
 
 
RE-OPEN REGULAR AGENDA 

 
16. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon the Sale of Approximately 204.925 Acres In the Silas 

Clark Survey (A028), Tract 18, As Recorded in Volume 496, Page 800 of the Official 
Records of Washington County and Located at 5525 Caney Creek Road in Chappell 
Hill, Texas and More Commonly Identified as the Old Landfill Property and 
Authorize the Mayor to Execute Any Necessary Documentation  

 
There was no discussion on this item. 

 
17. Administrative/Elected Officials Report 
 
 City Manager Terry Roberts reported on the following: 

 Council meeting will be held on July 3rd at 1:00pm. 
 Community Services Subcommittee meeting is tomorrow. HOT Board and BCDC 

have already met. 
 The ILA Task Force will meet next week. 

 
 Public Works Director Dane Rau reported on the following: 

 The Rosenbaum house is down. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Milton Y. Tate, Jr. 
Mayor 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jeana Bellinger, TRMC 
City Secretary 

City Council Meeting  
June 19, 2014 

16



Brenham City Council Minutes 
 

A special meeting of the Brenham City Council was held on June 26, 2014 beginning at 
1:00 p.m. in the Brenham City Hall, City Council Chambers, at 200 W. Vulcan Street, Brenham, 
Texas. 
 
Members present: 

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr. 
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix 
Councilmember Andrew Ebel 
Councilmember Danny Goss 
Councilmember Keith Herring 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley 

 
Members absent: 

 
Councilmember Weldon Williams, Jr. 
 

Others present: 
 
City Manager Terry K. Roberts, Assistant City Manager Kyle Dannhaus, City Secretary 
Jeana Bellinger, and Chief Financial Officer Carolyn Miller 
 

Citizens present: 
 
Alan Hutson 
 

Media Present: 
 
Arthur Hahn, Brenham Banner Press 

 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order 
 
2. Invocation and Pledges to the US and Texas Flags – Councilmember Goss 
 
 
Council adjourned into Executive Session at 1:02pm. 
 
  

City Council Meeting  
June 26, 2014 

17



EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
3. Section 551.072 - Texas Government Code – Deliberation Regarding Real Property 

– Discussion Regarding Potential Sale of Approximately 204.925 Acres In the Silas 
Clark Survey (A028), Tract 18, As Recorded in Volume 496, Page 800 of the Official 
Records of Washington County and Located at 5525 Caney Creek Road in Chappell 
Hill, Texas and More Commonly Identified as the Old Landfill Property 

 
Executive Session adjourned at 1:42pm. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 
4. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon the Sale of Approximately 204.925 Acres In the Silas 

Clark Survey (A028), Tract 18, As Recorded in Volume 496, Page 800 of the Official 
Records of Washington County and Located at 5525 Caney Creek Road in Chappell 
Hill, Texas and More Commonly Identified as the Old Landfill Property and 
Authorize the Mayor to Negotiate and Execute Any Necessary Documentation  

 
Citizen Alan Hutson questioned the sale and offer process. Hutson questioned the value 

of the property. Mayor Tate stated that the City knows what they purchased the land for and have 
researched the fair market value for similar properties. Mayor Tate explained that the City would 
like to get as close to fair market value as possible on the property. Hutson questioned if the City 
has a current appraisal on the property because the radio stated the appraisal was from 2006. 
Mayor Tate stated they do not have an appraisal on the property, but they have gotten their 
numbers from the appraisal district to determine a range and looked at properties that are similar 
in the area. Roberts stated the City Council will need to evaluate and determine a consensus what 
a fair value for the property is before the sale of the property can take place. Roberts explained 
the motion and second are based on discussion in Executive Session today, so that the Mayor has 
direction to be able to negotiate on behalf of the City Council regarding the property. 
 

A motion was made by Councilmember Herring and seconded by Councilmember 
Barnes-Tilley to approve the sale of approximately 204.925 acres in the Silas Clark Survey 
(A028), Tract 18, as recorded in Volume 496, Page 800 of the Official Records of Washington 
County and located at 5525 Caney Creek Road in Chappell Hill, Texas and more commonly 
identified as the Old Landfill Property and authorize the Mayor to negotiate and execute any 
necessary documentation. 
 

Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  
 

Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Yes 
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Absent 

City Council Meeting  
June 26, 2014 

18



5. Administrative/Elected Officials Report 
 
 There were no administrative reports. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Milton Y. Tate, Jr. 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jeana Bellinger, TRMC 
City Secretary 

City Council Meeting  
June 26, 2014 

19



Brenham City Council Minutes 
 

A regular meeting of the Brenham City Council was held on July 3, 2014 beginning at 
1:00 p.m. in the Brenham City Hall, City Council Chambers, at 200 W. Vulcan Street, Brenham, 
Texas. 
 
Members present: 

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr. 
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix 
Councilmember Andrew Ebel 
Councilmember Danny Goss 
Councilmember Keith Herring 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley 

 
Members absent: 

 
Councilmember Weldon Williams, Jr. 
 

Others present: 
 
City Manager Terry K. Roberts, Assistant City Manager Kyle Dannhaus, City Attorney 
Cary Bovey, City Secretary Jeana Bellinger, Deputy City Secretary Amanda Klehm, 
Chief Financial Officer Carolyn Miller, Wende Ragonis, Fire Chief Ricky Boeker, 
Deputy Fire Chief Alan Finke, Heath Moehlmann, Police Chief Rex Phelps, Kelvin 
Raven, Lance Weiss, Angela Hahn, Billy Rich, Development Services Director Julie 
Fulgham, Sarah Hill, Public Works Director Dane Rau, Leslie Kelm, Public Utilities 
Director Lowell Ogle, and Grant Lischka 
 

Citizens present: 
 
Clint Kolby, Brian Taylor, Alisa Taylor, and Bridget Weiss 
 

Media Present: 
 
Kyle Cunningham, Brenham Banner Press; Frank Wagner, KWHI 

 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order 
 
2. Invocation and Pledges to the US and Texas Flags – Councilmember Ebel 
 
3. Service Recognitions 

 Lance Weiss – Police Department – 5 years 
 

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

20



4. Citizens Comments 
 
 There were no citizen comments. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
5. Statutory Consent Agenda 
 

5-a. Minutes from the June 5, 2014 Pre-Budget City Council Workshop and June 
5, 2014 Regular City Council Meetings 

 
A motion was made by Councilmember Herring and seconded by Councilmember 

Barnes-Tilley to approve the Statutory Consent Agenda Item 5-a. 
 

Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  
 

Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Yes 
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Absent 

 
WORK SESSION 
 
6. Discuss and Review the FY2013-14 Second Quarter Financial Report  
 

Chief Financial Officer Carolyn Miller presented this item. Miller advised the status of 
the General Fund and the five major utility funds in the report. Miller reported that the City 
experienced favorable performance in the General Fund and all utility funds posted positive net 
revenues over expenditures, with the exception of the Water Fund which posted a net loss for the 
quarter due to lower water consumption, which is weather driven. 

 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 

  
 

Fund 
2nd QTR Actual Performance 

Revenues Expenditures Net Revenues 
General Fund $ 8,177,478 $ 7,684,954 $ 492,524 
Electric Fund $ 13,006,313 $ 12,644,492 $ 361,820 
Gas Fund $ 2,489,416 $ 2,200,063 $ 289,353 
Water Fund $ 2,221,605 $ 2,404,967 $ (183,361) 
Wastewater Fund $ 1,778,999 $ 1,665,058 $ 113,941 
Sanitation Fund $ 1,685,346 $ 1,596,778 $ 88,568 
 

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

21



Miller explained at the end of the second quarter, the General Fund posted net reserves of 
$492,542. Miller advised the Electric Fund had favorable net revenues of $361,820 at the end of 
the second quarter. Miller stated for the second quarter, the Gas Fund posted net revenues of 
$289,353. Miller explained the Water Fund experienced unfavorable net revenues of ($183,362) 
for the second quarter.  Miller advised net revenues for the Wastewater Fund were $113,941 for 
the second quarter. Miller advised the combined operations of the Sanitation Fund posted 
favorable net revenues of $88,568 for the second quarter. 
 
7. Discussion and Presentation on Various City of Brenham Permitting and Inspection 

Fees for Development Services, Code Enforcement, and Fire Marshal’s Office 
 

Development Services Director Julie Fulgham presented this item. Fulgham handed out a 
revised and relined proposed fee schedule changes. Fulgham presented fee research and 
proposed fee increases related to planning, building permits, health inspections, and fire 
inspections within the City of Brenham. Fulgham explained that it has been twenty (20) years 
since the last fee update. Fulgham explained that she is recommending an increase in the City’s 
fees to be more in-line with other cities that are the City’s size or in the City’s surrounding area. 
Fulgham advised that she will bring a Resolution to the next meeting for an effective date for the 
new fees of October 1, 2014.  

 
Councilmember Goss questioned how often restaurants and daycares had to have health 

and building inspections performed. Councilmember Goss questioned if it was every year or 
every two years. Deputy Fire Chief Alan Finke stated that it varies upon the type of inspection, 
but General Fire Code Inspection is performed yearly or annually. Finke explained that for repeat 
Community Businesses and those inspections that are self-initiated by the Fire Marshal’s Office 
will not be charged for the inspection; however, those inspections that are sought out by the 
businesses will be charged the fees. Finke stated initially the plan review and inspections are 
performed.  

 
Councilmember Goss questioned regarding inspections of hospitals. Councilmember 

Goss inquired about how often they were inspected and the inspection fees. Finke stated 
hospitals are inspected yearly along with nursing homes, assisted living facilities and daycares. 
Finke advised that these establishments are required by the state to have the inspections done 
yearly for their relicensing.  

 
Mayor Tate questioned about truck and trailer vendors in Brenham. Finke stated that he is 

only aware and inspected one of those. 
 
Councilmember Goss questioned if food establishment permits are paid yearly. Fulgham 

stated that yes, David Doelitsch, Code Enforcement Officer, felt that it was fair to charge the 
$100.00 fee, which includes all types of food vendors because there are many different variables 
and types to be inspected. Fulgham explained that there will be an additional fee for those food 
vendors who want a rush inspection less than 7 business days before they plan to begin selling. 

 
  

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

22



Fulgham questioned if the City is inclined to waive the fees for other governmental 
entities. Assistant City Manager Kyle Dannhaus stated that the City typically does not charge 
Brenham ISD, Blinn College or Washington County to pull permits. Councilmember Goss 
questioned how much time goes into inspections for these entities. Dannhaus stated there is a lot 
of time that goes into the inspections because they are typically large projects. Councilmember 
Barnes-Tilley questioned if waiving fees for other governmental entities is a common practice in 
other cities. Fulgham stated that yes, typically this is the case, but it varies from city to city. 

 
Councilmember Goss questioned how much time went into inspections for schools 

especially with the new Alton Elementary School currently being built. Finke stated typically 
forty (40) hours for each school, but he can’t make up his time to charge hourly. Councilmember 
Barnes-Tilley stated that she is inclined to say no due to the size of the projects these 
governmental entities take on. Councilmember Goss stated roughly eighty (80) hours plus Plan 
Review and Allen Jacobs’ time. Fulgham stated that only a few hours goes into Plan Review, but 
the bulk of the time spent is with Allen Jacobs. Councilmember Goss questioned if we charged 
hourly to help recuperate costs for these large projects, would the City even break even. Finke 
stated that there is no way to fully recuperate costs for these large projects and the hours he gave 
are being conservative.  

 
Councilmember Barnes-Tilley stated that unless there is a good argument, she is not 

inclined to waive fees for those governmental entities. Mayor Pro Tem Nix stated that being a 
small business owner, it seems unfair for her to have to pay for permits, while larger businesses 
get their fees waived. Councilmember Herring stated that he concurs with Councilmember 
Barnes-Tilley and Mayor Pro Tem Nix. Councilmember Goss stated to review and bring back 
with a recommendation to the next Council meeting. 
 
8. Discussion Regarding Burleson Street Improvements and Other Road Improvement 

Projects  
 

City Engineer Grant Lischka presented this item. Lischka stated as part of the Highway 
36 and Burleson Street Waterline Extension, approximately 3,000 feet of pavement repair will be 
required on Burleson Street between Highway 36 and the Little Sandy Creek crossing.  Lischka 
explained as discussed with Council at the June 19th meeting, approximately $900,000 is 
available from the 2012 Bond Proceeds. Lischka advised that taking direction from Council, 
Staff initiated discussions with TxDOT regarding intersection and signal improvements at three 
intersections in the City and conducted more in-depth reviews of the other street projects 
discussed at the meeting. 
 
Burleson Street Reconstruction 
 

Lischka stated the bid item in the contract is $22.80 per linear foot of pavement repair, 
which translates into approximately $68,000 to repair the approximately 3-foot wide trench. 
Lischka stated the contractor has already completed the backfilling and compaction of the trench 
at $6.00 per foot, which leaves approximately $50,000 available for the remaining pavement 
repair.   
 

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

23



Lischka explained that after reviewing the roadway, Staff has determined that the Street 
Department could reconstruct and overlay the entire street (approximately 3,000 feet) for 
approximately the same price. Lischka advised that this price does not include the rental of a 
road mixer so it would be contingent on acquiring the road mixer for another project. Lischka 
explained that Burleson Street’s utilization and dynamics have changed with the construction of 
the Woodbridge Subdivision and Staff believes this is a very economical option for improving 
Burleson Street. Lischka advised that Burleson Street has been resurfaced from FM 577 to the 
Little Sandy Creek crossing, so this would complete improvements to Burleson Street to the City 
Limits. 

 
Councilmember Goss questioned about the low water crossing. Councilmember Goss 

questioned if Staff did an analysis on the low water crossing regarding removing it on Burleson 
Street. Lischka stated that Staff did not do a study of that area. Councilmember Goss questioned 
how much that would cost. Lischka advised that he would look into it. 
 
Intersection Improvements 
 

Lischka explained that TxDOT is receptive to the intersection improvements and a 
coordination meeting is being scheduled. Lischka stated TxDOT has indicated that an Advanced 
Funding Agreement will need to be executed between the City and TxDOT in order for the City 
to perform the improvements. Lischka advised that engineered plans will also be required 
wherever modifications to signal infrastructure is needed. Lischka stated that currently, it appears 
that the Stone/Day and Academy/Park intersections will require signal infrastructure 
modifications.  Lischka explained that the City does not have the benefit of survey information at 
these intersections, so at this time it is difficult to fully determine the right-of-way acquisition 
that will be required. Lischka stated that while the City would like to keep right-of-way 
acquisition to a minimum, there will certainly be the need in some, or possibly all, sides of the 
respective intersections. Lischka advised that right-of-way acquisition could play a large factor 
in the cost of the projects. Lischka explained that the timeframe for the projects is in the six to 
twelve month range before any work could begin. Lischka stated that Staff will continue to 
pursue the intersection improvements and establish more accurate cost estimates. 
 

Lischka stated that given the many unknowns and timeframe regarding the intersection 
improvements, Staff recommends that the City should utilize a portion of the remaining bond 
proceeds to complete projects that are construction ready. Lischka explained the two projects 
Staff recommends are Cantey Street Extension and Chappell Hill Street Widening (from Ralston 
Creek to Stone Street), which would in turn provide the means to construct the Burleson Street 
Improvements. 

 
Mayor Tate questioned if the cost for this project would be all on the City or TxDOT. 

Lischka advised that the City would incur all of the costs.  
 
  

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

24



Cantey Street Extension 
 

Lischka explained that the City owns the necessary right-of-way to construct Cantey 
Street and the projected cost is $130,000, which includes all materials and rental of a road mixer 
to construct a 39 foot collector street section to the U.S. 290 Frontage Road.  Lischka advised the 
cost does not include labor or equipment because Staff recommends that the City Street 
Department perform the work.  Lischka stated Staff believes Cantey Street utilization will 
increase with the new residential growth just north of this area. 
 
 Councilmember Goss stated that regarding Cantey Street and Chappell Hill Street 
extensions/expansions, he feels that it would be premature to extend Cantey Street because it 
could be some of the developer’s responsibility at least partially because it would be an 
advantage to the developer. Councilmember Goss stated that he would like to see the City hold 
off on the Cantey Street project and focus on the Chappell Hill Street extension due to influx of 
traffic. Councilmember Goss explained that Chappell Hill Street being punched through will 
increase traffic flow than it currently has. Mayor Tate stated it is not a necessity for the developer 
to invest in the Cantey Street project because of current frontage. Councilmember Goss 
explained there are more advantageous reasons to put that project on hold because Chappell Hill 
Street project is a necessity. Mayor Tate stated Cantey Street feeds into 290 and would 
accommodate traffic better than Chappell Hill Street. Councilmember Goss stated he thinks there 
will be more traffic on Chappell Hill Street, but he does not deny that Cantey Street project will 
be beneficial. Mayor Tate stated he thinks the Cantey Street project is a priority over the 
Chappell Hill Street project. 
 
Chappell Hill Street Widening (from Ralston Creek to Stone Street)      
 

Lischka stated the widening of Chappell Hill Street is a project that Staff believes could 
be started within a few months with the estimated cost of the project is $225,000.  Lischka 
explained that after review of the existing right-of-way, Staff believes that Chappell Hill Street 
can be widened to a minimum of 31 feet wide with only one property acquisition. Lischka 
advised that while this does not meet the current City standards of a 39-foot wide collector street, 
Staff believes that a pavement section at least 31 feet wide will suffice and improve existing 
conditions. Lischka explained that North of Stone Street is highly unlikely that anything wider 
than a 31-foot section is feasible. Lischka advised that as with Cantey Street, the estimated cost 
includes materials and rental of a road mixer, with the Street Department performing the work.  
Lischka explained that Chappell Hill Street is the City’s most continuous north-south arterial 
street and this widening allows for safer traffic conditions. 
 
Road Mixer/Asphalt Zipper 
 

Lischka explained that in order to complete any of the three projects listed above, a road 
mixer would be required. Lischka advised that the rental of the road mixer is included in the cost 
of Cantey Street and Chappell Hill Street, but not in the cost of Burleson. Lischka stated rental 
costs for a road mixer or Asphalt Zipper are approximately $15,000 per month, which would be 
significant cost savings in the grouping of these projects due to a one-time rental of this machine.   
 

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

25



Lischka explained that the City demoed an Asphalt Zipper earlier this year and was able 
to complete approximately 2,600 feet of street reconstruction in less than two weeks at a cheaper 
cost than the existing construction methods the Street Department currently has available. 
Lischka stated as discussed with Council before, Staff believes that an Asphalt Zipper will 
greatly expand the City’s abilities to improve the existing street system and therefore, if funds 
are available Staff would recommend the purchase of an Asphalt Zipper.   

 
 

 
REGULAR AGENDA  
 
9. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon an Audit Engagement Letter from Seidel, Schroeder 

& Company to Perform an Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2014 
and Authorize the Mayor to Execute Any Necessary Documentation  

 
Chief Financial Officer Carolyn Miller presented the proposed audit engagement letter 

from Seidel, Schroeder & Company for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2014. Miller stated 
that the audit fee estimate, which slightly increased from last year due to changes in auditing 
standards in the area of regulatory compliance, is a reasonable amount due to the complexity of 
the City’s financial activities. Miller stated that the annual audit fee includes a reasonable annual 
increase of $200.  

 
Miller advised that in comparing this fee with prior years, the following information is 

provided: 
 
Fiscal Year Ending           Audit Fee  $ Increase % Increase 
09/30/2010              39,500                  -          - 
09/30/2011      41,000 to 43,000     $3,500       8.86%  
09/30/2012      41,000 to 43,000              -         -  
09/30/2013      41,800 to 43,800              800          1.86%   
09/30/2014                                 42,000 to 44,000                     200                   .46% 
 

A motion was made by Councilmember Barnes-Tilley and seconded by Councilmember 
Ebel to approve an audit engagement letter from Seidel, Schroeder & Company to perform an 
audit for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2014 and authorize the Mayor to execute any 
necessary documentation.  
 

Councilmember Goss abstained from the vote. 
 
  

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

26



Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  
 

Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss    Abstain  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Yes 
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Absent 

 
10. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon the Purchase of a 2003 Refurbished Vertical 

Cardboard Baler for the City of Brenham Recycling Center and Authorize the 
Mayor to Execute Any Necessary Documentation  

 
Mayor Tate stated that this item will be passed because it is not ready at this 

point. 
 
11. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon the Purchase of a 2014 Trench Roller for the City of 

Brenham’s Fleet Program and Authorize the Mayor to Execute Any Necessary 
Documentation  

 
Public Works Director Dane Rau presented this item. Rau stated the Central Fleet is 

looking at purchasing a Wacker-Packer Trench Roller and adding it to the rental items for our 
internal departments.  Rau explained that throughout the year, Central Fleet keeps equipment that 
is used by various city departments and rents them out on an as need basis rather than having 
multiple departments own the same piece of equipment. Rau advised that Staff started this 
several years ago and it has worked great.  Rau advised that revenues are received throughout the 
year and expenses on maintenance and new items are paid for by the Central fleet Fund. 
 

Rau stated the Central Fleet Department would like to purchase a trench roller that would 
be very beneficial for the gas, water, electric, and sewer departments. Rau explained that this 
trench roller would allow these departments to mechanically pack down a ditch line to assure 
that compaction requirements are met.  Rau stated that it can be adjusted for ditches as small as 
24” to 33”. Rau stated it is a standalone unit that can be operated remotely. Rau explained that 
Staff has rented these units several times from rental companies and feel that it would be a great 
asset for these departments to rent from Central Fleet with all the projects taking place.   
 

Rau explained that currently the Central Fleet Fund balance is $219,000.  Rau stated Staff 
would like to issue a purchase order to Equipro Texas for the trench roller for a total cost of 
$31,926.00. Rau explained that Staff has received 4 quotes on the exact unit RTX-SC2 and 
Equipro Texas was the lowest quote.    
 

Rau explained that in the past, Staff has purchased a 20’ dump trailer and a small 
Vermeer vac unit from these reserves and both pieces of equipment have been used greatly by 
many departments. 

 

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

27



A motion was made by Councilmember Herring and seconded by Councilmember Ebel 
to approve the purchase of a 2014 Trench Roller for the City of Brenham’s Fleet Program from 
Equipro Texas in the amount of $31,926.00 and authorize the Mayor to execute any necessary 
documentation. 

  
Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Yes 
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Absent 

 
12. Discuss and Possibly Act Upon the Purchase of Public Utility Software for the 

Electric System and Authorize the Mayor to Execute Any Necessary Documentation  
 

Public Utilities Director Lowell Ogle presented this item. Ogle stated that in the late 
1990’s the City of Brenham contracted with the LCRA engineering division to build a model of 
the City’s electrical distribution system and to do a system study.  Ogle explained that this model 
was built using Milsoft software. Ogle advised that over the years, the City has spent hundreds of 
thousands of dollars developing and keeping that model up-to-date. Ogle stated the City of 
Brenham owns the model (data) but not the software to run it. 
 

Ogle explained that during the budget process last year, Council approved the purchase of 
Engineering and Outage Management Software for the Electric System. Ogle advised that this 
model would be used for the engineering analysis and outage management software the City will 
purchase. Ogle stated that due to the growth of the City’s system and the added complexities of 
the regulatory environment, the City needs to have in-house access to the model. Ogle advised 
that this software will allow Staff to do more in-house analysis of load additions etc. as well as 
troubleshoot system problems, increase reliability to the City’s customers, prepare for future 
regulatory requirements and improve efficiency and safety during outages. Ogle explained that 
the main driver for the City’s purchase of the software is the Outage Management module since 
this is not used by the engineers. 
 

Ogle explained that several years back, the City decided it would be more cost effective 
to have the electrical engineering firms Staff uses for the City’s system design up keep the 
model.  Ogle advised that the data in the model belongs to the City and Staff had it released to 
the City’s engineering firms (Schneider and McCord Engineering), which only use Milsoft. 
 

Ogle advised that the main engineering firm the City uses is McCord Engineering. Ogle 
explained that they only use Milsoft and recommend the City stays consistent with what the City 
already owns. Ogle stated the other systems they do work for also use Milsoft. 
 

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

28



A motion was made by Councilmember Goss and seconded by Councilmember Herring 
to approve the purchase of Public Utility Software from Milsoft Utility Solutions in the amount 
of $67,662.50 for the Electric System and authorize the Mayor to execute any necessary 
documentation.  

 
Councilmember Goss stated currently when outages occur, Communications take a lot of 

calls on the City’s behalf for utilities, but in the event that Communications moved to the 
County, the City will lose that ability. Councilmember Goss questioned with this new software 
and existing software, will the appropriate persons received notifications of outages and 
monitoring will send out notifications to identify the problem areas. Ogle explained that yes, it 
will send out notifications and predict where the outages are located. Ogle stated this will help 
because now Staff has to go out and have to manually locate the problem area. Ogle advised that 
the next step would be to get the automated and IBR system, which is a call back like 
Bluebonnet Electric uses. Ogle stated this could cut down on man power. Dannhaus stated it may 
not lower call volume unless go to the IBR system. Dannhaus explained that the City may need 
to do Call Staff and Ogle would bring in Staff if Communications goes to the County. 
Councilmember Goss questions if the City will have live people answering calls. Dannhaus 
stated yes, there would. Councilmember Goss questioned if those monitoring the system would 
be answering calls. Dannhaus stated no, Ogle would bring in Staff to answer calls. 
Councilmember Goss questioned what the solution to losing Communications is. Dannhaus 
stated one option is to have in-house Staff, but the City would need to determine if it is necessary 
to do a 24 hour, 7 day a week call center.  

 
Mayor Tate questioned how many outages the City has in a year’s time. Ogle stated that 

it depends on the weather, but he doesn’t know off hand the exact number. Ogle explained that 
when a storm comes through, the City normally has outages. Mayor Tate questioned how much 
extra the IBR system is. Ogle stated it would be about $80,000.00, but what the City pays for 
Staff to man a call center, it may be cheaper. Councilmember Barnes-Tilley stated that she 
doesn’t want to take out the human factor, but want to be efficient. 

  
Mayor Tate called for a vote. The motion passed with Council voting as follows:  

 
Mayor Milton Y. Tate, Jr.     Yes  
Mayor Pro Tem Gloria Nix     Yes  
Councilmember Andrew Ebel    Yes  
Councilmember Danny Goss     Yes  
Councilmember Keith Herring    Yes 
Councilmember Mary E. Barnes-Tilley ` Yes 
Councilmember Weldon Williams    Absent 

 
Administrative/Elected Officials Reports:  Reports from City Officials or City staff regarding items of community interest, 
including expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary 
recognitions of public officials, public employees or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by 
the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is 
scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and 
safety of people in the City that have arisen after the posting of the agenda. 

 
 

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

29



13. Administrative/Elected Officials Report 
 
 City Manager Terry Roberts reported on the following: 

 Budget Workshops will be Monday, July 21st and Thursday, July 24th all day both 
days. The workshops will begin at 8:30am with a continental breakfast being 
served at 8:00am. 

 TML Conference registration is earlier this year, so Paula will need to know if 
you are attending by July 11th. The TML Conference begins on September 30th. 

 ILA update is tentatively set to come back to Council on July 17th. Terry and Kyle 
will be glad to answer any questions on the packet laid around the Dias regarding 
the ILA update. 

 Hot Nights, Cool Tunes kicks off on Saturday night with Texas Unlimited. This is 
the 10th anniversary of Hot Nights, Cool Tunes. 

 Happy 4th of July! 
 
 Mayor Milton Tate reported on the following: 

 Councilmember Williams saw a heart specialist and is on his way back from the 
doctor in Austin today. The Council would like to wish him well. 

 
 Public Utilities Director Lowell Ogle reported on the following: 

 As of July 3rd, Lake Somerville is above full. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Milton Y. Tate, Jr. 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jeana Bellinger, TRMC 
City Secretary 

City Council Meeting  
July 3, 2014 

30



 
AGENDA ITEM 5 

 
DATE OF MEETING: July 17, 2014 
 
DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Development Services 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 8, 2014 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Julie Fulgham 

MEETING TYPE:                                      CLASSIFICATION:                                        ORDINANCE: 
 
   REGULAR   PUBLIC HEARING   1ST READING 
 
   SPECIAL   CONSENT   2ND READING 
 
   EXECUTIVE SESSION                         REGULAR   RESOLUTION 
 
    WORK SESSION 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Discuss and Possibly Act Upon Resolution No. R-14-016 Adopting New 
Permit and Inspection Fees for the City of Brenham’s Development Services, Code Enforcement, and Fire 
Marshal’s Office  
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Resolution adopting fees presented during a Work Session at the July 3rd Council 
meeting for building permits, mechanical permits, plumbing permits, electric permits, health inspections, and fire 
safety inspections.  
 
STAFF ANALYSIS (For Ordinances or Regular Agenda Items): 
 

A. PROS: 
 

B. CONS: 
 
ALTERNATIVES (In Suggested Order of Staff Preference): N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: (1) Resolution No. R-14-016; and (2) Schedule of Fees 
 
FUNDING SOURCE (Where Applicable): N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution No. R-14-016  adopting new permit and inspection fees for 
the City of Brenham’s Development Services, Code Enforcement, and Fire Marshal’s Office 
 
APPROVALS: Terry K. Roberts 
 
 
 
 
 

31



 
RESOLUTION NO. R-14-016 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRENHAM, TEXAS ADOPTING 
NEW PERMIT AND INSPECTION FEES FOR THE CITY OF 
BRENHAM’S DEVELOPMENT SERVICES, CODE ENFORCEMENT, 
AND FIRE MARSHAL’S OFFICE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted Chapter 6 – Buildings and Structures, Chapter 
9 Food and Food Establishments, and, Appendix A regulating various activities by requiring 
permits and inspections; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances authorizes the City Council to adopt a schedule of 

fees. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF BRENHAM, TEXAS THAT EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2014: 
 
The City Council hereby adopts the attached fee schedule for various building and 

construction, code enforcement and fire marshal related permits and inspections.  
 
PASSED and APPROVED on this 17TH day of July, 2014. 

 
 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Milton Y. Tate, Jr. 
 Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jeana Bellinger, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 

32



Schedule of Fees 
Development Services 

Building Permits & Inspections 
Planning 

Health Inspections 
Fire Marshal Inspections 

Building Permit Fees 
Permit Issuing Fee $25.00 
 
Residential – New Construction   .30ȼ per square foot 
 
Accessory Buildings – Value of Project according to commercial schedule 
 
Commercial - (Building, Commercial Electrical, Plumbing, & Mechanical) –  
Total Valuation:     Fee   
Up to $2,000.00     $10.00 per thousand or fraction thereof. 
$2,001 to $15,000.00 $20.00 for the first $2,000.00 plus $3.00 for each 

additional thousand or  
fraction thereof, to and including $15,000.00. 

$15,001.00 to $50,000.00 $60.00 for the first $15,000.00 plus $2.50 for each 
additional thousand or fraction thereof, to and 
including $50,000.00. 

$50,001.00 to $100,000.00 $175.00 for the first $50,000.00 plus $2.00 for each 
additional thousand or fraction thereof, to and 
including $100,000.00. 

$100,001.00 to $500,000.00 $300.00 for the first $100,000.00 plus $1.25 for each 
additional thousand or fraction thereof, to and 
including $500,000.00. 

$500,001.00 and up $950.00 for the first $500,000.00 plus $.75 for each 
additional thousand or fraction thereof.  

Electric Fees 
Permit fee     $25.00 
Re-inspection fee    $25.00 
Meter Loop & Service    $5.00 
Reconnect     $15.00 
Openings over 4 (each)    $0.50 
Fixtures      $1.00 
Motors:  
 Less than 50 HP    $5.00 
 50 HP and greater   $10.00 
Temporary sawpole    $15.00 
Electric dryer     $5.00 
Range outlet     $5.00 
Range table top     $5.00  
Range oven     $5.00 
Garbage disposal    $5.00 
Dishwasher     $5.00 
Window A/C receptacle    $5.00 

33



Electric water heater    $5.00 
KW 0-5 per KW    $0.60 
Over 5 KW add per KW    $0.15 
Sign: per ballast    $3.00 
 per transformer    $5.00 
Value: (for projects over $1000 in value)  see building permit fee schedule 
 
 
Plumbing Fees 
Permit fee     $25.00 
Re-inspection fee    $25.00 
Fixtures (each)     $2.00 
Connect to existing house sewer  $5.00 
House sewer replacement or new line  $10.00 
House sewer partial replacement   $10.00 
 (Not a complete house line) 
Water service line    $5.00 
Water heater and/or vent   $5.00 
 T & P Valve    $5.00 
Water treatment equipment   $5.00 
Grease trap installation    $10.00 
Swimming pool water supply line  $5.00 
Lawn sprinkler system    $10.00 
Storm water drainage system   $10.00 
 Connect downspouts   $0.50 
Connect to storm drain system   $5.00 
See Public Utilities for: 
 Tank fees 
 Wye and tap fees 
Gas piping system (1-5)    $7.50 

Additional outlets (each)  $0.50 
Incinerators (gas-fired)    $20.00 
Gas meter relocation    $10.00 
Fire protection systems: 
 Sprinkler system (each floor)  $35.00 
 Standpipe system:  
 1-25 hose connections   $25.00 
 Each additional hose connections $0.50 
Other (Based on value)    see building permit fee schedule 
 
Mechanical Fees 
Permit Fee     $25.00 
Re-inspection fee    $25.00 
Heating only     $25.00 Per 100,000 BTU or part thereof 
Air Conditioning    $25.00 plus $2.00 per ton or part thereof 
Ventilating system (2,000 cfm & over)  $25.00 
Commercial fees based on building permit fee schedule 
 

34



Re-Inspection Fee 
Building Official/Inspector Re-inspection fee  $50.00 
(Related to any failed inspection for any permits issued by Development Services) 
 
Planning Fees 
Zone Change/Specific Use   $100.00 
Variance from Sign Ordinance   $50.00 
Variance from Subdivision Ordinance  $100.00 
Variance from Zoning Ordinance  $100.00 
Special Exception from Zoning Ordinance  $50.00 
Preliminary Plat , Master Plan   $50.00 
Final Plat, Replat, Minor Plat, Amending Plat $150.00 
 
Health Inspection Fees 
Fixed Food Establishment Permit  $100.00 ($25.00 for Bed and Breakfast) 
Mobile Food Establishment Permit  $50.00 
Temporary Food Establishment Permit  $25.00 
Re-inspection     $25.00 
Application Late Fee $25.00 ($50.00 if the permit is required within 7 

calendar days) 
Child Care Inspection    $25.00 
 
Fire Department Inspection Fees 
      Initial Inspection Re-inspection    
Residential, existing, upon request  No charge  N/A    
Foster or Adoptive Care Home   No charge  No charge   
Daycare Facility     $25.00   $25.00    
Health Care (Hospital, clinic, nursing home) $150.00  $50.00    
Sprinkler/standpipe     $200.00  $50.00    
Fire Alarm Systems     $100.00  $50.00    
Underground Fire Line     $100.00  $50.00    
Kitchen Vent Hood Systems    $100.00  $50.00    
Special Permit Yearly Inspection   $50.00   $50.00    
General Fire Code Enforcement Inspections No charge  No charge         
 
Fire Department Inspection Fees are in addition to applicable building permit fees and includes 
necessary plan reviews.  
  
 
 
  
 
 
 

35



 
AGENDA ITEM 6 

 
DATE OF MEETING:  July 17, 2014 
 
DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Airport 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 9, 2014 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Kim Hodde 

MEETING TYPE:                                      CLASSIFICATION:                                        ORDINANCE: 
 
    REGULAR   PUBLIC HEARING   1ST READING 
 
   SPECIAL   CONSENT   2ND READING 
 
   EXECUTIVE SESSION   REGULAR   RESOLUTION 
 
    WORK SESSION 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Discuss and Possibly Act Upon an Amendment No. 1 to the Airport Project 
Participation Agreement No. 13HGBRENM with TxDOT and Authorize the Mayor to Execute Any Necessary 
Documentation 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: This project was approved by TxDOT at an estimated cost of $1,695,000 with the City 
of Brenham’s share being approximately $169,500; however, when the bids were received the cost increased by 
$177,620 making the estimated cost of the project $1,872,620 with the City’s share being $187,262.  We have 
previously paid TxDOT $169,510 thus leaving a balance due to TxDOT of $17,752.  We can use some of the funds 
currently budgeted for the remainder of the fencing at the airport to cover this deficit then complete the remainder of the 
fencing after October 1, 2014.   
 
STAFF ANALYSIS (For Ordinances or Regular Agenda Items): 

A. PROS:   
    

B. CONS:    
ALTERNATIVES (In Suggested Order of Staff Preference):  
 
ATTACHMENTS: (1) Amendment Number 01 to the Agreement; and (2) Letter from TxDOT 
 
FUNDING SOURCE (Where Applicable):   Current budget funds 
       
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Amendment Number 1 to the Airport Project Participation Agreement 
between the City of Brenham and TxDOT (13HGBRENM) for the construction of a 10-unit T-hangar 
development, various access taxiways and installation of a new electrical vault at the Brenham Municipal Airport 
and authorize the Mayor to execute any necessary documentation. 
 
APPROVALS:   Terry K. Roberts 
 
 

 
36



TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
AIRPORT PROJECT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

 
(Federally Assisted Airport Development) 

 
TxDOT CSJ No.: 13HGBRENM 

TxDOT Project No.: AP BRENHAM 2 
  TxDOT Contract No. : 3XXAV095 

Commission Approval: May 30, 2013 
NPE Funds Applied:  FY10, FY11, FY12, FY13  

DUNS: 939864294 
C.F.D.A.:20.106 

  
  

Amendment No. 01 to the Agreement 
 
 Part I - Identification of the Project 
 
TO:  The City of Brenham, Texas 
 
FROM: The State of Texas, acting through the Texas Department of Transportation 

 
 

The City of Brenham, Texas, hereinafter referred to as the "Sponsor,” and the Texas 
Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "State," have entered into an Airport 
Project Participation Agreement TxDOT CSJ Number 13HGBRENM, executed by the Sponsor 
on June 17, 2013, and by the State on June 20, 2013, for the development of the Brenham 
Municipal Airport, hereinafter referred to as the "Airport". 
 

The project is described as construction services to:  construct 10 unit T-hangar, South 
and North hangar access taxiway, and cross taxiway; widen hangar access taxiway; and construct 
electrical vault at the Brenham Municipal Airport. 
 

It is in the mutual interest of the Sponsor and the State to increase the grant by $177,620 
based on bids received. 
 

Part II - Offer of Financial Assistance, estimates total project costs to be $1,695,000; and 
financial assistance is currently limited to $1,525,000 in federal funds and $169,500 in local 
sponsor funds. 
 

The following amendment to the Airport Project Participation Agreement shall become 
effective upon execution of this Amendment by the Sponsor and the State. 

 
The Airport Project Participation Agreement is amended as follows: 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

37



1. On Part II, Item No. 2 of the Agreement, change Amount A, estimated total project    
costs, and any further references in the Agreement to Amount A, to $1,872,620. 
 
2. On Part II, Item No. 2 of the Agreement, change Amount B, estimated project costs 
eligible for federal financial assistance, and any further references in the Agreement to Amount 
B, to $1,872,620. 
 
3. On Part II, Item 3 of the Agreement, change Amount C, the maximum obligation of the 
United States payable under this offer, and any further references in the Agreement to Amount 
C, to $1,685,358. 
 
4. On Part II, Item 4 of the Agreement, change Amount D, Sponsor's share of the estimated 
construction costs, and any further references in the Agreement to Amount D, to $187,262. 
 

All other terms and conditions of the agreement are unchanged and remain in full force 
and effect.                                

 
This Amendment to the Airport Project Participation Agreement between the City of 

Brenham, Texas, and the Texas Department of Transportation is mutually agreed to and 
accepted.  

 
Executed this                                     day of                                                 , 20____. 
 
 

   The City of Brenham,  Texas                                
        Sponsor 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                 
Witness Signature      Sponsor Signature 
 
                                                                                                                                                  
Witness Title       Sponsor Title                                       
    
     
 

     
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

38



 Execution by the State 
 
Executed by and approved for the Texas Transportation Commission for the purpose and effect 
of activating and/or carrying out the orders, established policies or work programs and grants 
heretofore approved and authorized by the Texas Transportation Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
 

By:_______________________________________                                                                            
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date:_____________________________________                                                                         
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

39



40



 
AGENDA ITEM 7 

 
DATE OF MEETING:  July 17, 2014 
 
DEPT. OF ORIGIN:  Police Department 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 9, 2014 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Rex L. Phelps 

MEETING TYPE:                                      CLASSIFICATION:                                        ORDINANCE: 
 
    REGULAR   PUBLIC HEARING   1ST READING 
 
   SPECIAL   CONSENT   2ND READING 
 
   EXECUTIVE SESSION   REGULAR   RESOLUTION 
 
    WORK SESSION 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Discuss and Possibly Act Upon Resolution No. R-14-017 Authorizing the 
Acceptance of TxDOT’s Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) Grant for the Period of October 1, 2014 
through September 30, 2015 for the Police Department and Authorize the Mayor to Execute Any Necessary 
Documentation. 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  This grant funds police officers to enforce speeding violations in specific areas. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS (For Ordinances or Regular Agenda Items): 
 
A. PROS:   The funds make it possible for this department to be proactive in terms of preventing traffic accidents 
because it reimburses the city for overtime hours expended for the specific purposes above.  The actual 
reimbursement amount the city is eligible for is $36,270.00.          
 
B. CONS:   There is a matching requirement in the amount of $14,813.46; however, the STEP enforcement 
generates significant revenue to negate this con.   
 
ALTERNATIVES (In Suggested Order of Staff Preference):   
 
ATTACHMENTS: (1) Resolution No. R-14-017; and (2) Copy of the 2010 Texas Traffic Safety Program Grant 
Agreement 
 
FUNDING SOURCE (Where Applicable):  STEP Grant 
 

 
41



 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution No. R-14-017 accepting the STEP Grant in the amount of 
$51,083.46 for the period October 1, 2014 thru September 30, 2015 for the Police Department and authorize the 
Mayor to execute any necessary documentation. 
 
APPROVALS: Terry K. Roberts 
 
 

 
42



RESOLUTION NO. R-14-017 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRENHAM, TEXAS AUTHORIZING 
THE ACCEPTANCE OF TXDOT’S SELECTIVE TRAFFIC 
ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM (STEP) GRANT FOR THE PERIOD OF 
OCTOBER 1, 2014 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 FOR THE CITY OF 
BRENHAM, TEXAS POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) works together with 

local law enforcement agencies to decrease automobile accidents and the resulting fatalities and 
injuries; and 

 
WHEREAS, Selective Traffic Enforcement Programs (STEPS) are grants provided by 

TxDOT to law enforcement agencies to enforce traffic safety laws such as speed and intersection 
traffic control. 

 
WHEREAS, TxDOT is providing $36,270.00 in funding with a match amount of 

$14,813.46 provided by the Brenham Police Department for a total amount of $51,083.46 to be 
used for overtime for officers’ participating in the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program 
(STEP).   

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BRENHAM, TEXAS that the Mayor is 

authorized to execute all documents necessary for the acceptance of the grant funding provided 
through the STEP program. 
 
 
 

PASSED and APPROVED this the 17th day of July, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Milton Y. Tate, Jr. 
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeana Bellinger, TRMC 
City Secretary 

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



 
AGENDA ITEM 8 

 
DATE OF MEETING: July 17, 2014 
 
DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Development Services 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 11, 2014 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Julie Fulgham 

MEETING TYPE:                                      CLASSIFICATION:                                        ORDINANCE: 
 
   REGULAR   PUBLIC HEARING   1ST READING 
 
   SPECIAL   CONSENT   2ND READING 
 
   EXECUTIVE SESSION                         REGULAR   RESOLUTION 
 
    WORK SESSION 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Section 551.071 – Consultation with Attorney – Deliberation 
Regarding A Substandard Building Located in the Noel’s Addition, Lot 1C, As Recorded in Volume 
1167, Page 717 of the Official Records of Washington County and Located at 209 South Market Street, 
Brenham, Texas 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: As discussed in Executive Session. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS (For Ordinances or Regular Agenda Items): 
 

A. PROS: 
 

B. CONS: 
 
ALTERNATIVES (In Suggested Order of Staff Preference): N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
FUNDING SOURCE (Where Applicable): N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Discussion Only. 
 
APPROVALS:  Terry K. Roberts 
 
 
 
 
 

72



 
AGENDA ITEM 9 

 
DATE OF MEETING: July 17, 2014 
 
DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Development Services 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 11, 2014 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Julie Fulgham 

MEETING TYPE:                                      CLASSIFICATION:                                        ORDINANCE: 
 
   REGULAR   PUBLIC HEARING   1ST READING 
 
   SPECIAL   CONSENT   2ND READING 
 
   EXECUTIVE SESSION                         REGULAR   RESOLUTION 
 
    WORK SESSION 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Discuss and Possibly Act Upon Authorizing the City Attorney to Pursue All 
Available Legal Remedies, Proceedings and Relief on Behalf of the City of Brenham, Texas Against All 
Appropriate Persons and/or Entities Regarding a Substandard Building Located at 209 South Market Street, 
Brenham, Texas, said Property also Described as Noel’s Addition, Lot 1C in a Deed Recorded in Volume 1167, 
Page 717 of the Official Records of Washington County 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: As discussed in Executive Session. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS (For Ordinances or Regular Agenda Items): 
 

A. PROS: 
 

B. CONS: 
 
ALTERNATIVES (In Suggested Order of Staff Preference): N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
FUNDING SOURCE (Where Applicable): N/A 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the authorization of the City Attorney to pursue all available legal 
remedies, proceedings and relief on behalf of the City of Brenham, Texas against all appropriate persons and/or 
entities regarding a substandard building located at 209 South Market Street, Brenham, Texas, said property also 
described as Noel’s Addition, Lot 1C in a Deed Recorded in Volume 1167, Page 717 of the Official Records of 
Washington County. 
 
APPROVALS:  Terry K. Roberts 
 
 

73


	Consent Agenda
	Adoption of New Permit/Inspection Fees
	Airport Hangar Project Amendment
	STEP Grant
	ES - Building Standards
	R - Building Standards



